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The Hotel Barnum is a thirteen-story steel skeleton building of reinforced 
concrete construction. It is located near the center of the Main Street business 
district in downtown Bridgeport, opposite the Baldwin Plaza Mall and new 
Fairfield County Courthouse, and is adjoined by various commercial buildings 
that front on Main and Elm Streets and Fairfield Avenue.

The structure is unique in Bridgeport with its terraced profile. Two 
ten-story pavilions protrude from the thirteen story central tower at either 
side, giving the building a U-shape. These pavilions in turn are flanked by 
subsidiary eight-story win gs. The piano nob lie of the second story ties 
the entire mass together with its arcaded row of tripartate windows flush with the 
street with balustrade^.balconies in the three recesses above.

The exterior is faced with skindle brick laid in broken Flemish bond, 
with diamond and herringbone designs worked in. It is trimmed at such 
points as window and doorway openings and balustrades with a pinkish color 
pre-cast articifial stone moulded into elaborate Art Deco designs. There are 
three ground-floor storefronts along the main Fairfield Avenue front. In addition, 
there are two marquees (modern replacements of the originals), one located 
over the main hotel entrance and the other over the doorway leading to the 
Barnum Arcade.

This arcade extends approximately 210 feet in a curve through to Elm Street. 
It contains twelve shops in addition to six others that face Elm Street. The 
shopfronts have transomed doorways and windows trimmed in dark stained wood; 
the walls in between are of mottled glazed tiles approximately 5 inches by 14 inches 
each. The floor is terrazzo and the ceiling is textured stucco. The half of the 
arcade nearest Elm Street is lit by three rectangular skylights that have brass 
enframements.

The main hotel portion of the building contains 188 rooms, with 21 rooms 
on each floor between the third and eleventh stories and 17 rooms each on the 
twelfth and thirteenth. The rooms are roughly similar in size and ail contain 
a private lavatory, lavatory and shower, or lavatory and bath. All bathroom 
fixtures are original, as are the ceiling lights with etched glass globes in each 
room. Dark-stained wooded doors with louvred top panels lead to the corridors, 
some of which retain the original scallop pattern carpeting. The public space at 
the center of each floor is lit by a square Spanish-style wrought iron lantern 
suspended from the ceiling. The public space has entrances to the two elevators. 
On the eighth floor originally was an executive suite (since partitioned into 
standard size rooms) which had its own kitchen facilities and private roof garden 
shaded by a canvas awning.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Hotel Barnum is an outstanding Art Deco feature of the downtown Bridge 
port skyline. An Italian palazzo front, English brickwork and Egyptian 
detailing complement the design. Built in a grand style during one of the city's 
most expansive periods, it remained one of the great hostelries of New England 
for many years after its construction. Today it serves ptimaril^as'a "' l ' lU 
residential hotel and is still one of the city's most important architectural 
ornaments.

The Barnum was known as the Hotel Beach at the time of its opening. It 
was named for Francis E. Beach, prominent local merchant and owner of the 
land on which the building was erected. The name was changed within a year to 
Hotel Barnum after the more-famous showman who was a Bridgeport re sident 
in the nineteenth century. The structure was owned by a group of local 
stockholders and leased to the American Hotels Corporation of New York. 
The timing of its opening (4 March 1929) so close to the beginning of the Great 
Depression crippled business at the onset, and by 1930 the hotel had been 
foreclosed by the Metropolitan Life Insurance Corporation, which continued 
to lease it to the American Hotels Corporation.

The architect of the hotel was the New York firm of Thomas, Martin 
& Kirkpartick, designers of other major hotels across the country. The local 
press at the time made note of the "cosmopolitan" styling first brought to 
Bridgeport with its construction. A 1928 article in Bridgeport Life stated that 
it, "resembles the new school of design that has made the New York skyline such 
a marvelously fairylike appearance." The Bridgeport Post of 12 May 1928 
described the Lobby as, "similar to the Hotel Commodore in New York City."

Today this Art Deco landmark, the second tallest component of the 
city's skyline, still serves as a major focal point of the downstore area. 
It has been adapted for reuse as a predominantly residential hotel, as 
there are few transient salesmen traveling by rail who call at local businesses 
and industries.



Hotel Barnum newspaper clipping file, Historical Collections, Bridgeport 
Public Library.
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The main floor of the hotel is on the second story. It contains a lobby, 
lounge, banquet room and dining room, along with kitchen facilities. The lobby 
is approximately 30 feet by 40 feet with a 14-foot ceiling height. It has a floor of 
Belgian black and yellow terrazzo and a wood-beamed coffered ceiling. It is 
approached by a 15-foot wide main staircase with wrought iron Spanish style 
central and side bannisters. All ceiling light fixtures are also of hammered 
wrought iron, some having gold leaf finish.

The registration desk is at the west side of the lobby. It is constructed 
of dark varnished oak with diamond shape recessed panels underneath. At the 
north end of it is a brass cashier's cage. The adjoining check room is 
entirely panelled to a height of seven feet. On the opposite side of a passway 
leading to the banquet hall is a telephone room, again panelled in oak. The 
only major change made in the lobby since the time of its construction has 
been the partitioning of a small area at the head of the main staircase for an 
office.

The lounge is a rectangular room at the front of the building, 19 feet by 45 
feet, running parallel with Fairfield Avenue. Near each end are pairs of segmented 
octagonal columns with corresponding octagonal pilasters in the end walls. There 
are flat faced inverted wrought iron ceiling fixtures of Art Deco design.

The banquet hall at the west end of the building is approximately 30 feet 
by 80 feet. It has a beamed ceiling supported by marblized Corinthian 
pilasters with gilded capitals. A small private meeting room facing Fairfield 
Avenue is connected to it by sliding doors.

The former hotel dining room was converted to the "Winter Quarters" 
ballroom in the 1940 T s, and a small stage and bar have been added. Two of the 
three ground floor storefronts on Fairfield Avenue, including the hotel coffee 
shop, have been remodeled in the past decade and their original decor covered 
over or removed.
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The Hotel Barnum includes all of that area in the City of Bridgeport 
bounded as follows: starting at a point of intersection with the north 
street line of Fairfield Avenue at the intersection of the easterly 
property line of land now or formerly of Hart Realty Co.; thence 
northerly for a distance of 147 feet, more or less, to a point of intersection 
with the east and north property lines of land now or formerly of 
Hart Realty Co.; thence westerly 20.7 feet, more or less, to a point of 
intersection with the north boundary line of land now or formerly of Hart 
Realty Co. and the east property line of land now or formerly of 
Yale University; thence running northerly 70 feet, more or less, to a 
point of intersection with the east property line of land now or 
formerly of Yale University and the south street line of Elm Street; 
thence easterly 107.74 feet, more or less, along the south street line 
of Elm Street to a point of intersection with the west property line of 
land now or formerly of 1115 Main Street Company; thence southerly 
110 feet, more or less, to a point of intersection with the north property 
line of land now or formerly of 1105 Main Street Inc. and R. & P. 
Terry; thence westerly 15 feet, more or less, to a point of intersection with 
the west property line of land now or formerly of 1105 Main Street Inc. and 
R. & P. Terry; thence southerly 23 feet, more or less, to a point of 
intersection with the south property line of land now or formerly of 
1105 Main Street Inc. and R. & P. Terry; thence easterly 32 feet, more 
or less, to a point of intersection with the west property line of land now 
or formerly of Premium Rea Ity Corp. and R.N.D. Realty Corp.; thence 
southerly 106.25 feet, more or less, to a point of intersection with the 
north street line of Fairfi eld Avenue; thence westerly 96. 04 feet, more or 
less, to the point of beginning.
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